As Introduced

135th General Assembly
Regular Session S. B. No. 98

2023-2024
Senator Rulli

A BILL

To amend sections 1345.02, 1701.07, 1702.06,
1702.59, 1703.041, 1703.15, 1703.29, 1706.09,
1729.11, 1746.04, 1747.03, 1776.07, 1782.04, and
1785.06 and to enact sections 109.543, 111.242,
and 111.243 of the Revised Code to address
fraudulent business filings, deceptive mailings,
reinstatement of canceled business entities, and

addresses of statutory agents.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF OHIO:

Section 1. That sections 1345.02, 1701.07, 1702.06,
1702.59, 1703.041, 1703.15, 1703.29, 1706.09, 1729.11, 1746.04,
1747.03, 1776.07, 1782.04, and 1785.06 be amended and sections
109.543, 111.242, and 111.243 of the Revised Code be enacted to

read as follows:

Sec. 109.543. (A) The attorney general, upon receiving a

complaint referred by the secretary of state under section

111.243 of the Revised Code, shall review and determine whether

to investigate the complaint.

(B) (1) If the attorney general determines to investigate

the complaint, the attorney general shall send written notice
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and demand to the address of the person who is the subject of

the complaint or the person's registered agent of record listed

in the secretary of state's online filing system, established

and maintained in accordance with section 111.23 of the Revised

Code. The attorney general shall also send a copy of the notice

and demand to the person's or agent's electronic mail address,

if that address is available.

(2) If a telephone number is available, the attorney

general shall also attempt to contact the person who is the

subject of the complaint or the person's registered agent by

telephone.

(3) The attorney general may provide written or verbal

notice and demand to any other person that the attorney general

determines, through investigation, is a means by which to reach

the person who is the subject of the complaint.

(4) The attorney dgeneral's notice and demand shall

describe the allegations in the complaint and demand that the

person respond to the complaint by a date certain, with all

information described in division (C) of this section.

(C) A person to which the attorney general sends a notice

and demand, or the person's agent, shall respond within twenty-—

one davys after the written notice and demand is mailed. The

response shall include all of the following information:

(1) The name, street address, telephone number, electronic

mail address, if available, and any additional contact

information of the person responding to the notice and demand;

(2) If the responding person is a registered agent of the

person that is the subject of the complaint, any supporting

documents that establish the agent's authority to act on the
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person's behalf;

(3) The name of the person that is the subiject of the

complaint;

(4) Information, if known, identifving each person

involved in the alleged violation of division (A) of section

111.243 of the Revised Code, including names, street addresses,

telephone numbers, web sites, and electronic mail addresses;

(5) Information identifving the nature of any business or

personal relationship between the person that submitted the

complaint and each person involved in the alleged violation of

division (A) of section 111.243 of the Revised Code, excepting

any privileged communications or information;

(6) A statement that affirms or denies having knowledge of

or information about the alleged violation of division (A) of

section 111.243 of the Revised Code;

(7) Any material evidence that is reasonably attainable to

the person responding to the notice and demand of written

consent to use the name or address in the filing at issue in the

complaint;

(8) A statement by the person responding to the notice and

demand, under penalty of perjury, that the person believes in

good faith that the facts stated in the response are true;

(9) Any additional information that the person responding

to the notice and demand believes may be useful in an

investigation of the complaint.

(D) If, within twenty-one days after mailing a notice and

demand, the attorney general does not receive a response, in

writing or otherwise, the attorney general shall send a second
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notice and demand, consistent with the requirements of division

(B) of this section, and allow an additional twenty-one days for

a response, which shall comply with the requirements of division

(C) of this section.

(E) (1) If a person in receipt of a notice and demand

concedes to a complaint made under section 111.243 of the

Revised Code, the attorney general shall certify that fact to

the secretary of state.

(2) If the attorney general does not receive a response

within twenty-one days after mailing a second notice and demand

as described in division (D) of this section, each allegation in

the notice and demand is deemed conceded by the person that did

not respond, and the attorney general shall certify that fact to

the secretary of state.

(F) (1) If a person in receipt of a notice and demand

wishes to contest a complaint made under section 111.243 of the

Revised Code, the person may request an administrative hearing

on the matter.

(2) If a person timely requests a hearing, the attorney

general may refer the complaint to an administrative hearing. If

the attorneyv general does not refer the complaint to an

administrative hearing within one hundred eighty days after the

attorney general receives the response to the notice and demand,

the attorney general is deemed to have determined to not proceed

with prosecuting the complaint.

(3) A reguest is timely if receipt of a response and a

request for a hearing on any issue raised by the notice and

demand is made within twentyv-one days after the notice and

demand is mailed.
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(G) (1) If a complaint is referred to an administrative

hearing, the administrative law judge presiding over the matter

shall hold a hearing within sixty days after the attorney

general refers the complaint and shall render a decision within

fifteen days after the hearing.

(2) The administrative law judge may dgrant the attorney

general or the person reguesting a hearing an extension of up to

thirty days upon a motion.

(3) The administrative law judge may dgrant the attorney

general or the person requesting a hearing an extension of

longer than thirty days upon a showing of good cause.

(H) If the administrative law judge finds that division

(A) of section 111.243 of the Revised Code has been violated,

the administrative law judge shall make an additional finding as

to whether either of the following is true:

(1) An entity was created without authorization or for

fraudulent purposes.

(2) An unauthorized filing was made.

(I) If the administrative law judge finds that an entity

was created without authorization or for fraudulent purposes, or

that an unauthorized filing was made for a legitimate entity,

the attorney general shall certify that fact to the secretary of

state.

(J) The decision of the administrative law judge is

subject to review by the court of common pleas of Franklin

county or the court of common pleas of the county in which the

person that is the subiject of the complaint resides or conducts

business. The secretary of state and the administrative law

judge are not necessary parties to the review.

Page 5

106
107
108
109
110

111
112
113

114
115
116

117
118
119
120

121
122

123

124
125
126
127
128

129
130
131
132
133
134



S. B. No. 98
As Introduced

(K) The attorney general shall communicate the finding

made by the administrative law judge to all of the following:

(1) The person who submitted the complaint, using the

electronic mail address provided on the complaint form or, if an

electronic mail address was not provided, using the mailing

address provided on the complaint form;

(2) Each person at issue, using registered mail addressed

to the person or the person's registered agent of record and to

the person's or agent's electronic mail address, if available;

(3) The secretary of state.

Sec. 111.242. (A) As used in this section, "solicit" or

"solicitations" means to directly advertise to a person.

"Solicit" and "solicitations" do not include either of the

following:

(1) Communication initiated by a consumer;

(2) Advertising or marketing to a person with whom the

solicitor has a current or former commercial relationship.

(B) Any person other than the federal government, the

state, a state agency, or a local government that solicits a fee

for filing a document with, or retrieving a copy or certified

copy of a certificate or public record from, the secretary of

state shall do all of the following:

(1) (a) Include a statement in the solicitation, in the

same language as the solicitation, that is identical or

substantially similar to the following:

"This is an advertisement. This offer is not being made

by, or on behalf of, anv government agency. You are not required

to make any payvment or take any other action in response to this
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offer."

(b) If the solicitation is in writing, the statement shall

be in at least twenty-four-point type and located at the top of

the physical document or the beginning of the electronic

communication.

(2) Include, in the case of mailed solicitation, the words

"THTIS IS NOT A GOVERNMENT DOCUMENT" in twentv-four-point type

and all capital letters on the envelope, outside cover, or

wrapper in which the solicitation is mailed;

(3) Include both of the following in the solicitation:

(a) Information on where the person can file a document

directly with the secretary of state or retrieve a copy or

certified copy of a certificate or public record;

(b) The name of the person making the solicitation and the

person's physical address, which shall not be a post office box.

(C) A solicitation described in division (B) of this

section shall not be in a form, or use deadline dates or other

language, that makes the document appear to be issued by the

federal government, the state, a state agency, or a local

government, or that appears to impose a legal duty on the person

being solicited.

(D) A violation of this section constitutes a deceptive

act or practice in connection with a consumer transaction in

violation of section 1345.02 of the Revised Code and is subject

to any applicable penalties prescribed under Chapter 1345. of

the Revised Code.

Sec. 111.243. (A) No person shall do any of the following:

(1) Include the name of another person on a document filed
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with the secretary of state under Title XIII or Title XVII of

the Revised Code without that person's consent, if the named

person is included in the filing as:

(a) A statutory agent;

(b) The individual causing the document to be delivered

for filing;

(c) The person incorporating, forming, registering, or

organizing an entity or name registration;

(d) Any other person required to be identified in the

document.

(2) Include an address in a document filed with the

secretary of state under Title XIITI or Title XVII of the Revised

Code without the consent of either the owner or occupant of that

address;

(3) Deliver a document to the secretary of state under

Title XIII or Title XVII of the Revised Code concerning another

person, without the necessary consent or authority to do so.

(B) A person named in, or otherwise affected by, the

filing of a document under Title XITII or Title XVII of the

Revised Code may submit a complaint to the secretary of state,

on a form prescribed by the secretary of state, alleging that

the filing was made in violation of division (A) of this

section. The complaint shall include at least the following

information:

(1) A description of the alleged violation;

(2) The name, street address, telephone number, electronic

mail address, if available, and any additional contact

information of the person making the complaint;
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(3) The name, street address, telephone number, electronic

mail address, if available, and any additional contact

information of any third party authorized to submit the

complaint on behalf of the person that is named in, or affected

by, the filing;

(4) The document identification number assigned by the

secretary of state to each filed document that is alleged to

have been filed in violation of division (A) of this section;

(5) An identification number assigned by the secretary of

state for each person associated with the complaint and the

filing, if known to the person making the complaint;

(6) Information, if known to the person making the

complaint, identifving each person involved in the filing,

including names, street addresses, telephone numbers, web sites,

and electronic mail addresses;

(7) Information, if known to the person making the

complaint, identifyving the nature of any business or personal

relationship between the person making the complaint and each

person involved in the filing;

(8) A statement by the person making the complaint, under

penalty of perijury, that the person believes in good faith that

the facts stated in the complaint are true and that the

complaint complies with the regquirements of this section;

(9) Any additional information that the person making the

complaint believes may assist in an investigation of the

complaint.

(C) Upon receipt of a complaint submitted pursuant to

division (B) of this section, the secretary of state shall

review the complaint and evaluate whether the complaint
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indicates a violation of division (A) of this section and

satisfies the requirements of division (B) of this section. If

so, the secretary of state shall refer the complaint to the

attorney general for review and investigation.

(D) TIf the secretary of state determines that the

information provided in a complaint does not indicate a

violation of division (A) of this section or does not satisfy

the requirements of division (B) of this section, the secretary

of state shall notify the person that submitted the complaint

and provide an explanation of any deficiencies in the complaint.

(E) The secretary of state may ask a person who submits a

complaint to submit additional information concerning either of

the following:

(1) The alleged violation of division (A) of this section;

(2) The person's failure to submit the information

required by division (B) of this section.

(F) The secretary of state shall notify the person who

submitted a complaint of the outcome of the secretary of state's

review of the complaint.

(G) If the secretary of state rejects a complaint for

failure to comply with division (B) of this section, the

complaint may be resubmitted.

(H) Upon receiving notice from the attorney general under

division (E) or (I) of section 109.543 of the Revised Code that

division (A) of this section has been violated, the secretary of

state shall proceed as follows:

(1) If an entity was created without authorization or for

fraudulent purposes, the secretary of state shall do all of the
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following: 276
(a) Cancel the business record in guestion with a notice 277
that the entity is unauthorized or fraudulent; 278
(b) Redact each address and name that was used without 279
authorization from the entity's filing and from any other 280
relevant filings; 281
(c) Disable additional filing functionality on the 282
entity's records. 283
(2) If an unauthorized filing was made for a legitimate 284
entity, the secretary of state shall do both of the following: 285
(a) Cancel each unauthorized filing for the entity with a 286
notice that the filing is unauthorized; 287
(b) Redact each address and name that was used without 288
authorization from the entity's filing and from the relevant 289
filings. 290
(I) (1) A violation of division (A) of this section 291
constitutes a deceptive act or practice in connection with a 292
consumer transaction in violation of section 1345.02 of the 293
Revised Code and is subiject to any applicable penalties 294
prescribed under Chapter 1345. of the Revised Code. 295
(2) A concession or failure to timely respond to a notice 296
and demand as provided by division (E) of section 109.543 of the 297
Revised Code or a determination by an administrative law judge 298
as provided by division (H) of section 109.543 of the Revised 299
Code constitutes a prima facie showing that division (A) of this 300
section was violated. 301
Sec. 1345.02. (A) No supplier shall commit an unfair or 302

deceptive act or practice in connection with a consumer 303
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transaction. Such an unfair or deceptive act or practice by a
supplier violates this section whether it occurs before, during,

or after the transaction.

(B) Without limiting the scope of division (A) of this
section, the act or practice of a supplier in representing any

of the following is deceptive:

(1) That the subject of a consumer transaction has
sponsorship, approval, performance characteristics, accessories,

uses, or benefits that it does not have;

(2) That the subject of a consumer transaction is of a
particular standard, quality, grade, style, prescription, or

model, if it is not;

(3) That the subject of a consumer transaction is new, or

unused, if it is not;

(4) That the subject of a consumer transaction is

available to the consumer for a reason that does not exist;

(5) That the subject of a consumer transaction has been
supplied in accordance with a previous representation, if it has
not, except that the act of a supplier in furnishing similar
merchandise of equal or greater value as a good faith substitute

does not violate this section;

(6) That the subject of a consumer transaction will be

supplied in greater quantity than the supplier intends;
(7) That replacement or repair is needed, if it is not;

(8) That a specific price advantage exists, if it does

not;

(9) That the supplier has a sponsorship, approval, or
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affiliation that the supplier does not have;

(10) That a consumer transaction involves or does not
involve a warranty, a disclaimer of warranties or other rights,

remedies, or obligations if the representation is false.

(C) In construing division (A) of this section, the court
shall give due consideration and great weight to federal trade
commission orders, trade regulation rules and guides, and the
federal courts' interpretations of subsection 45 (a) (1) of the
"Federal Trade Commission Act," 38 Stat. 717 (1914), 15 U.S.C.A.

41, as amended.

(D) No supplier shall offer to a consumer or represent
that a consumer will receive a rebate, discount, or other
benefit as an inducement for entering into a consumer
transaction in return for giving the supplier the names of
prospective consumers, or otherwise helping the supplier to
enter into other consumer transactions, if earning the benefit
is contingent upon an event occurring after the consumer enters

into the transaction.

(E) (1) No supplier, in connection with a consumer
transaction involving natural gas service or public
telecommunications service to a consumer in this state, shall
request or submit, or cause to be requested or submitted, a
change in the consumer's provider of natural gas service or
public telecommunications service, without first obtaining, or
causing to be obtained, the verified consent of the consumer.
For the purpose of this division and with respect to public
telecommunications service only, the procedures necessary for
verifying the consent of a consumer shall be those prescribed by
rule by the public utilities commission for public

telecommunications service under division (D) of section 4905.72
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of the Revised Code. Also, for the purpose of this division, the
act, omission, or failure of any officer, agent, or other
individual, acting for or employed by another person, while
acting within the scope of that authority or employment, is the

act or failure of that other person.

(2) Consistent with the exclusion, under 47 C.F.R.
64.1100(a) (3), of commercial mobile radio service providers from
the verification requirements adopted in 47 C.F.R. 64.1100,
64.1150, 64.1160, 64.1170, 64.1180, and 64.1190 by the federal
communications commission, division (E) (1) of this section does
not apply to a provider of commercial mobile radio service
insofar as such provider is engaged in the provision of
commercial mobile radio service. However, when that exclusion no
longer is in effect, division (E) (1) of this section shall apply

to such a provider.

(3) The attorney general may initiate criminal proceedings
for a prosecution under division (C) of section 1345.99 of the
Revised Code by presenting evidence of criminal violations to
the prosecuting attorney of any county in which the offense may
be prosecuted. If the prosecuting attorney does not prosecute
the violations, or at the request of the prosecuting attorney,
the attorney general may proceed in the prosecution with all the
rights, privileges, and powers conferred by law on prosecuting
attorneys, including the power to appear before grand juries and

to interrogate witnesses before grand juries.

(F) Concerning a consumer transaction in connection with a
residential mortgage, and without limiting the scope of division
(A) or (B) of this section, the act of a supplier in doing

either of the following is deceptive:

(1) Knowingly failing to provide disclosures required
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under state and federal law;

(2) Knowingly providing a disclosure that includes a

material misrepresentation.

(G) Without limiting the scope of division (A) of this
section, the failure of a supplier to obtain or maintain any
registration, license, bond, or insurance required by state law
or local ordinance for the supplier to engage in the supplier's

trade or profession is an unfair or deceptive act or practice.

(H) A violation of section 111.242 or division (A) of

section 111.243 of the Revised Code is an unfair or deceptive

act or practice.

Sec. 1701.07. (A) Every corporation shall have and
maintain an agent, sometimes referred to as the "statutory

agent, " upon whom any process, notice, or demand required or
permitted by statute to be served upon a corporation may be

served. The agent shall be one of the following:
(1) A natural person who is a resident of this state;

(2) A domestic or foreign corporation, nonprofit
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited partnership
association, professional association, business trust, or
unincorporated nonprofit association that has a business address
in this state. If the agent is an entity other than a domestic
corporation, the agent shall meet the requirements of Title XVII
of the Revised Code for an entity of the agent's type to

transact business or exercise privileges in this state.

(B) The secretary of state shall not accept original
articles for filing unless there is filed with the articles a

written appointment of an agent that is signed by the
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incorporators of the corporation or a majority of them and a
written acceptance of the appointment that is signed by the
agent. In all other cases, the corporation shall appoint the
agent and shall file in the office of the secretary of state a
written appointment of the agent that is signed by any
authorized officer of the corporation and a written acceptance
of the appointment that is either the original acceptance signed
by the agent or a photocopy, facsimile, or similar reproduction

of the original acceptance signed by the agent.

4+ (C) (1) The written appointment of an agent shall set

forth the name and address in this state of the agent, including

the street and number er—ether—particutar—deseriptionof the

agent's primary residence in this state or, if the agent is not

a natural person, the agent's usual place of business in this

state, and shall otherwise be in such form as the secretary of
state prescribes. The secretary of state shall keep a record of
the names of corporations, and the names and addresses of their

respective agents.

(2) As used in division (C) (1) of this section, "usual

place of business" means a place in this state that is

customarily open during normal business hours and where an

individual is generally present who is authorized to perform the

services of a registered agent, including accepting service of

process and other notifications for the person serving as a

statutory agent. "Usual place of business" does not include a

post office box, regardless of whether that post office box has

an _associated street address.

(D) If any agent dies, removes from the state, or resigns,
the corporation shall forthwith appoint another agent and file

with the secretary of state, on a form prescribed by the
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secretary of state, a written appointment of the agent.

(E) If the agent changes the agent's address from that
appearing upon the record in the office of the secretary of
state, the corporation or the agent shall forthwith file with
the secretary of state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of

state, a written statement setting forth the new address.

(F) An agent may resign by filing with the secretary of
state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of state, a written
notice to that effect that is signed by the agent and by sending
a copy of the notice to the corporation at the current or last
known address of its principal office on or prior to the date
the notice is filed with the secretary of state. The notice
shall set forth the name of the corporation, the name and
current address of the agent, the current or last known address,
including the street and number or other particular description,
of the corporation's principal office, the resignation of the
agent, and a statement that a copy of the notice has been sent
to the corporation within the time and in the manner prescribed
by this division. Upon the expiration of thirty days after the

filing, the authority of the agent shall terminate.

(G) A corporation may revoke the appointment of an agent
by filing with the secretary of state, on a form prescribed by
the secretary of state, a written appointment of another agent
and a statement that the appointment of the former agent is

revoked.

(H) Any process, notice, or demand required or permitted
by statute to be served upon a corporation may be served upon
the corporation by delivering a copy of it to its agent, if a
natural person, or by delivering a copy of it at the address of

its agent in this state, as the address appears upon the record
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in the office of the secretary of state. If (1) the agent cannot
be found, or (2) the agent no longer has that address, or (3)
the corporation has failed to maintain an agent as required by
this section, and if in any such case the party desiring that
the process, notice, or demand be served, or the agent or
representative of the party, shall have filed with the secretary
of state an affidavit stating that one of the foregoing
conditions exists and stating the most recent address of the
corporation that the party after diligent search has been able
to ascertain, then service of process, notice, or demand upon
the secretary of state, as the agent of the corporation, may be
initiated by delivering to the secretary of state or at the
secretary of state's office gquadruplicate copies of such
process, notice, or demand and by paying to the secretary of
state a fee of five dollars. The secretary of state shall
forthwith give notice of the delivery to the corporation at its
principal office as shown upon the record in the secretary of
state's office and at any different address shown on its last
franchise tax report filed in this state, or to the corporation
at any different address set forth in the above mentioned
affidavit, and shall forward to the corporation at said
addresses, by certified mail, with request for return receipt, a
copy of the process, notice, or demand; and thereupon service

upon the corporation shall be deemed to have been made.

(I) The secretary of state shall keep a record of each
process, notice, and demand delivered to the secretary of state
or at the secretary of state's office under this section or any
other law of this state that authorizes service upon the
secretary of state, and shall record the time of the delivery

and the action thereafter with respect thereto.

(J) This section does not limit or affect the right to
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serve any process, notice, or demand upon a corporation in any

other manner permitted by law.

(K) Every corporation shall state in each annual report
filed by it with the department of taxation the name and address

of its statutory agent.

(L) Except when an original appointment of an agent is
filed with the original articles, a written appointment of an
agent or a written statement filed by a corporation with the
secretary of state shall be signed by any authorized officer of
the corporation or by the incorporators of the corporation or a

majority of them if no directors have been elected.

(M) For filing a written appointment of an agent other
than one filed with original articles, and for filing a
statement of change of address of an agent, the secretary of
state shall charge and collect the fee specified in division (R)

of section 111.16 of the Revised Code.

(N) Upon the failure of a corporation to appoint another
agent or to file a statement of change of address of an agent,
the secretary of state shall give notice thereof by ordinary or
electronic mail to the corporation at the electronic mail
address provided to the secretary of state, or at the address
set forth in the notice of resignation or on the last franchise
tax return filed in this state by the corporation. Unless the
default is cured within thirty days after the mailing by the
secretary of state of the notice or within any further period of
time that the secretary of state grants, upon the expiration of
that period of time from the date of the mailing, the articles
of the corporation shall be canceled without further notice or
action by the secretary of state. The secretary of state shall

make a notation of the cancellation on the secretary of state's
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records.

A corporation whose articles have been canceled may be

reinstated by filing, within two years of the cancellation, on a

form prescribed by the secretary of state, an application for
reinstatement and the required appointment of agent or required
statement, and by paying the filing fee specified in division
(Q) of section 111.16 of the Revised Code. The rights,
privileges, and franchises of a corporation whose articles have
been reinstated are subject to section 1701.922 of the Revised
Code. The secretary of state shall furnish the tax commissioner
a monthly list of all corporations canceled and reinstated under

this division.

(O) This section does not apply to banks, trust companies,
insurance companies, or any corporation defined under the laws

of this state as a public utility for taxation purposes.

Sec. 1702.06. (A) Every corporation shall have and
maintain an agent, sometimes referred to as the "statutory
agent, " upon whom any process, notice, or demand required or
permitted by statute to be served upon a corporation may be

served. The agent shall be one of the following:
(1) A natural person who is a resident of this state;

(2) A domestic or foreign corporation, nonprofit
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited partnership
association, professional association, business trust, or
unincorporated nonprofit association that has a business address
in this state. If the agent is an entity other than a domestic
corporation, the agent shall meet the requirements of Title XVII

of the Revised Code for an entity of the agent's type to
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transact business or exercise privileges in this state.

(B) The secretary of state shall not accept original
articles for filing unless there is filed with the articles a
written appointment of an agent signed by the incorporators of
the corporation or a majority of them and a written acceptance
of the appointment signed by the agent. In all other cases, the
corporation shall appoint the agent and shall file in the office
of the secretary of state a written appointment of the agent
that is signed by any authorized officer of the corporation and
a written acceptance of the appointment that is either the
original acceptance signed by the agent or a photocopy,
facsimile, or similar reproduction of the original acceptance

signed by the agent.

+&—(C) (1) The written appointment of an agent shall set

forth the name and address in this state of the agent, including

the street and number er—etherparticviardeseriptienof the

agent's primary residence in this state or, if the agent is not

a natural person, the agent's usual place of business in this

state, and shall otherwise be in such form as the secretary of
state prescribes. The secretary of state shall keep a record of
the names of corporations and the names and addresses of their

respective agents.

(2) As used in division (C) (1) of this section, "usual

place of business" means a place in this state that is

customarily open during normal business hours and where an

individual is generally present who is authorized to perform the

services of a registered agent, including accepting service of

process and other notifications for the person serving as a

statutory agent. "Usual place of business" does not include a

post office box, regardless of whether that post office box has
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an associated street address.

(D) If any agent dies, removes from the state, or resigns,
the corporation shall forthwith appoint another agent and file
with the secretary of state, on a form prescribed by the

secretary of state, a written appointment of that agent.

(E) If the agent changes the agent's address from that
appearing upon the record in the office of the secretary of
state, the corporation or the agent shall forthwith file with
the secretary of state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of

state, a written statement setting forth the new address.

(F) An agent may resign by filing with the secretary of
state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of state, a written
notice to that effect that is signed by the agent and by sending
a copy of the notice to the corporation at the current or last
known address of its principal office on or prior to the date
that notice is filed with the secretary of state. The notice
shall set forth the name of the corporation, the name and
current address of the agent, the current or last known address,
including the street and number or other particular description,
of the corporation's principal office, the resignation of the
agent, and a statement that a copy of the notice has been sent
to the corporation within the time and in the manner prescribed
by this division. Upon the expiration of sixty days after such

filing, the authority of the agent shall terminate.

(G) A corporation may revoke the appointment of an agent
by filing with the secretary of state, on a form prescribed by
the secretary of state, a written appointment of another agent
and a statement that the appointment of the former agent is

revoked.
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(H) Any process, notice, or demand required or permitted
by statute to be served upon a corporation may be served upon
the corporation by delivering a copy of it to its agent, if a
natural person, or by delivering a copy of it at the address of
its agent in this state, as such address appears upon the record
in the office of the secretary of state. If (1) the agent cannot
be found, or (2) the agent no longer has that address, or (3)
the corporation has failed to maintain an agent as required by
this section, and if in any such case the party desiring that
such process, notice, or demand be served, or the agent or
representative of the party, shall have filed with the secretary
of state an affidavit stating that one of the foregoing
conditions exists and stating the most recent address of the
corporation that the party after diligent search has been able
to ascertain, then service of process, notice, or demand upon
the secretary of state, as the agent of the corporation, may be
initiated by delivering to the secretary of state or at the
secretary of state's office triplicate copies of such process,
notice, or demand and by paying to the secretary of state a fee
of five dollars. The secretary of state shall forthwith give
notice of such delivery to the corporation at its principal
office as shown upon the record in the secretary of state's
office and also to the corporation at any different address set
forth in the above mentioned affidavit, and shall forward to the
corporation at each of those addresses, by certified mail, with
request for return receipt, a copy of such process, notice, or
demand; and thereupon service upon the corporation shall be

deemed to have been made.

(I) The secretary of state shall keep a record of each
process, notice, and demand delivered to the secretary of state

or at the secretary of state's office under this section or any
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other law of this state that authorizes service upon the
secretary of state, and shall record the time of such delivery
and the secretary of state's action thereafter with respect

thereto.

(J) This section does not limit or affect the right to
serve any process, notice, or demand upon a corporation in any

other manner permitted by law.

(K) Except when an original appointment of an agent is
filed with the original articles, a written appointment of an
agent or a written statement filed by a corporation with the
secretary of state shall be signed by any authorized officer of
the corporation or by the incorporators of the corporation or a

majority of them if no directors have been elected.

(L) For filing a written appointment of an agent other
than one filed with original articles, and for filing a
statement of change of address of an agent, the secretary of
state shall charge and collect the fee specified in division (R)

of section 111.16 of the Revised Code.

(M) Upon the failure of any corporation to appoint another
agent or to file a statement of change of address of an agent,
the secretary of state shall give notice thereof by certified
mail to the corporation at the address set forth in the notice
of resignation or on the most recent statement of continued
existence filed in this state by the corporation. Unless the
failure is cured within thirty days after the mailing by the
secretary of state of the notice or within any further period
the secretary of state grants, upon the expiration of that
period, the articles of the corporation shall be canceled
without further notice or action by the secretary of state. The

secretary of state shall make a notation of the cancellation on
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the secretary of state's records. A corporation whose articles

have been canceled may be reinstated by filing,_within two vears

of the cancellation, on a form prescribed by the secretary of

state, an application for reinstatement and the required
appointment of agent or required statement, and by paying the
filing fee specified in division (Q) of section 111.16 of the
Revised Code. The rights, privileges, and franchises of a
corporation whose articles have been reinstated are subject to
section 1702.60 of the Revised Code. The secretary of state
shall furnish the tax commissioner a monthly list of all

corporations canceled and reinstated under this division.

(N) This section does not apply to banks, trust companies,
insurance companies, or any corporation defined under the laws

of this state as a public utility for taxation purposes.

Sec. 1702.59. (A) Every nonprofit corporation,
incorporated under the general corporation laws of this state,
or previous laws, or under special provisions of the Revised
Code, or created before September 1, 1851, which corporation has
expressedly or impliedly elected to be governed by the laws
passed since that date, and whose articles or other documents
are filed with the secretary of state, shall file with the
secretary of state a verified statement of continued existence,
signed by a director, officer, or three members in good
standing, setting forth the corporate name, the place where the
principal office of the corporation is located, the date of
incorporation, the fact that the corporation is still actively
engaged in exercising its corporate privileges, and the name and
address of its agent appointed pursuant to section 1702.06 of

the Revised Code.

(B) Each corporation required to file a statement of
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continued existence shall file it with the secretary of state
within each five years after the date of incorporation or of the

last corporate filing.

(C) Corporations specifically exempted by division (N) of
section 1702.06 of the Revised Code, or whose activities are
regulated or supervised by another state official, agency,
bureau, department, or commission are exempted from this

section.

(D) The secretary of state shall give notice by ordinary
or electronic mail and provide a form for compliance with this
section to each corporation required by this section to file the
statement of continued existence, such notice and form to be
mailed to the last known physical or electronic mail address of
the corporation as it appears on the records of the secretary of
state or which the secretary of state may ascertain upon a

reasonable search.

(E) If any nonprofit corporation required by this section
to file a statement of continued existence fails to file the
statement required every fifth year, then the secretary of state
shall cancel the articles of such corporation, make a notation
of the cancellation on the records, and mail to the corporation

a certificate of the action so taken.

(F) A corporation whose articles have been canceled may be

reinstated by filing, within two years of the cancellation, an

application for reinstatement and paying to the secretary of
state the fee specified in division (Q) of section 111.16 of the
Revised Code. The name of a corporation whose articles have been
canceled shall be reserved for a period of one year after the
date of cancellation. If the reinstatement is not made within

one year from the date of the cancellation of its articles of
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incorporation and it appears that a corporate name, limited 750
liability company name, limited liability partnership name, 751
limited partnership name, or trade name has been filed, the name 752
of which is not distinguishable upon the record as provided in 753
section 1702.06 of the Revised Code, the applicant for 754
reinstatement shall be required by the secretary of state, as a 755
condition prerequisite to such reinstatement, to amend its 756
articles by changing its name. A certificate of reinstatement 757
may be filed in the recorder's office of any county in the 758
state, for which the recorder shall charge and collect a base 759
fee of one dollar for services and a housing trust fund fee of 760
one dollar pursuant to section 317.36 of the Revised Code. The 761
rights, privileges, and franchises of a corporation whose 762
articles have been reinstated are subject to section 1702.60 of 763
the Revised Code. 764

(G) The secretary of state shall furnish the tax 765
commissioner a list of all corporations failing to file the 766
required statement of continued existence. 767

Sec. 1703.041. (A) Every foreign corporation for profit 768
that is licensed to transact business in this state, and every 769
foreign nonprofit corporation that is licensed to exercise its 770
privileges in this state, shall have and maintain an agent, 771
sometimes referred to as the "designated agent," upon whom 772
process against the corporation may be served within this state. 773
The agent shall be one of the following: 774

(1) A natural person who is a resident of this state; 775

(2) A domestic or foreign corporation, nonprofit 776
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited 777
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited partnership 778

association, professional association, business trust, or 779
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unincorporated nonprofit association that has a business address
in this state. If the agent is an entity other than a domestic
corporation, the agent shall meet the requirements of Title XVII
of the Revised Code for an entity of the agent's type to

transact business or exercise privileges in this state.

B>+ (B) (1) The written appointment of a designated agent

shall set forth the name and address of the agent, including the
street and number er—etherparticvlardeseriptienof the agent's

primary residence in this state or, if the agent is not a

natural person, the agent's usual place of business in this

state, and shall otherwise be in such form as the secretary of
state prescribes. The secretary of state shall keep a record of
the names of such foreign corporations and the names and

addresses of their respective agents.

(2) As used in division (B) (1) of this section, "usual

place of business" means a place in this state that is

customarily open during normal business hours and where an

individual is generally present who is authorized to perform the

services of a registered agent, including accepting service of

process and other notifications for the person serving as a

statutory agent. "Usual place of business" does not include a

post office box, regardless of whether that post office box has

an associated street address.

(C) If the designated agent dies, removes from the state,
or resigns, the foreign corporation shall forthwith appoint
another agent and file in the office of the secretary of state,
on a form prescribed by the secretary of state, a written

appointment of the new agent.

(D) If the designated agent changes the agent's address

from that appearing upon the record in the office of the
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secretary of state, the foreign corporation or the designated
agent in its behalf shall forthwith file with the secretary of
state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of state, a written

statement setting forth the agent's new address.

(E) A designated agent may resign by filing with the
secretary of state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of
state, a signed statement to that effect. The secretary of state
shall forthwith mail a copy of the statement to the foreign
corporation at its principal office as shown by the record in
the secretary of state's office. Upon the expiration of sixty
days after the filing, the authority of the agent shall

terminate.

(F) A foreign corporation may revoke the appointment of a
designated agent by filing with the secretary of state, on a
form prescribed by the secretary of state, a written appointment
of another agent and a statement that the appointment of the

former agent is revoked.

(G) Process may be served upon a foreign corporation by
delivering a copy of it to its designated agent, if a natural
person, or by delivering a copy of it at the address of its
agent in this state, as the address appears upon the record in

the office of the secretary of state.

(H) This section does not limit or affect the right to
serve process upon a foreign corporation in any other manner

permitted by law.

(I) Every foreign corporation for profit shall state in
each annual report filed by it with the department of taxation

the name and address of its designated agent in this state.

Sec. 1703.15. No foreign corporation shall transact in
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this state any business that could not be lawfully transacted by
a domestic corporation. Whenever the secretary of state finds
that a foreign corporation licensed to transact business in this
state is transacting in this state a business that a domestic
corporation could not lawfully transact, is transacting business
in this state in a corporate name that is not readily
distinguishable from the name of every other corporation,
limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or
limited partnership, domestic or foreign, or every trade name,
registered in the office of the secretary of state, theretofore
authorized to transact business in this state, without the
consent of the other corporation, limited liability company,
limited liability partnership, limited partnership, or trade
name registrant, evidenced in writing filed with the secretary
of state pursuant to section 1703.04 of the Revised Code, or has
failed, after the death or resignation of its designated agent
or the designated agent's removal from this state, to designate
another agent as required by section 1703.041 of the Revised
Code, the secretary of state shall give notice thereof by
certified mail to the corporation. Unless that failure is cured
within thirty days after the mailing by the secretary of state
of the notice or within such further period as the secretary of
state grants, the secretary of state, upon the expiration of
such period, shall cancel the license of the foreign corporation
to transact business in this state, give notice of the
cancellation to the corporation by mail, and make a notation of

the cancellation on the secretary of state's records.

A foreign corporation whose license has been canceled may
be reinstated upon its filing with the secretary of state,

within two years of the cancellation, on a form prescribed by

the secretary of state, an application for reinstatement
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accompanied by the fee specified in division (Q) of section
111.16 of the Revised Code. If the application for reinstatement
is submitted in a tax year or calendar year other than that in
which the cancellation occurred, the application also shall be
accompanied by a certificate of reinstatement issued by the
department of taxation. The name of a corporation whose license
has been canceled pursuant to this section shall be reserved for
a period of one year after the date of cancellation. If the
reinstatement is not made within one year after the date of
cancellation of the foreign license and it appears that a
corporate name, limited liability company name, limited
liability partnership name, limited partnership name, or trade
name has been filed, the name of which is not distinguishable
upon the record as provided in division (D) of section 1703.04
of the Revised Code, the secretary of state shall require the
applicant for the reinstatement, as a condition prerequisite to
such reinstatement, to apply for authorization to transact

business in this state under an assumed name.

Sec. 1703.29. (A) The failure of any corporation to obtain
a license under sections 1703.01 to 1703.31 of the Revised Code,
does not affect the validity of any contract with such
corporation, but no foreign corporation that should have
obtained such license shall maintain any action in any court
until it has obtained such license. Before any such corporation
shall maintain such action on any cause of action arising at the
time when it was not licensed to transact business in this
state, it shall pay to the secretary of state a forfeiture of
two hundred fifty dollars and file in the secretary of state's
office the papers required by divisions (B) or (C) of this

section, whichever is applicable.

(B) If such corporation has not been previously licensed
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to do business in this state or if its license has been 901
surrendered it shall file as required by division (A) of this 902
section: 903

(1) Its application for a license certificate, together 904
with the filing fee, with such information as the secretary of 905
state requires as to the time it began to transact business in 906
this state and as to the number of its issued shares represented 907
in this state, and with the license fees on its shares 908
represented in this state plus a forfeiture of fifteen per cent 909
thereon. 910

(2) A certificate from the tax commissioner that the 911
corporation has paid all taxes that it should have paid had it 912
qualified to do business in this state at the time it began to 913
do so, plus any penalties assessable on said taxes on account of 914
failure to pay them within the time prescribed by law, or a 915
certificate of the commissioner that the corporation has 916
furnished security satisfactory to the commissioner for the 917
payment of all such taxes and penalties. 918

(C) If such corporation has been previously licensed to 919
transact business in this state and its license has expired or 920
has been canceled by the secretary of state upon order of the 921
commissioner, or for failure to designate an agent for service 922
of process, it shall file, within two years of the cancellation 923
or expiration, with the secretary of state its application for 924
reinstatement, as provided by law, together with the proper 925
reinstatement fee plus a forfeiture of fifteen per cent thereon. 926

Upon the filing of such application and payment of such 927
fees and penalties or forfeitures, the secretary of state shall 928

issue to such corporation a license certificate. 929
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Sec. 1706.09. (A) Each limited liability company and
foreign limited liability company that has an effective
registration as a foreign limited liability company under
section 1706.511 of the Revised Code shall maintain continuously
in this state an agent for service of process on the company.

The agent shall be one of the following:
(1) A natural person who is a resident of this state;

(2) A domestic or foreign corporation, nonprofit
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited partnership
association, professional association, business trust, or
unincorporated nonprofit association that has a business address
in this state. If the agent is an entity other than a domestic
corporation, the agent shall meet the requirements of Title XVII
of the Revised Code for an entity of the agent's type to

transact business or exercise privileges in this state.

(B) (1) The secretary of state shall not accept original
articles of organization of a limited liability company or an
original registration of a foreign limited liability company for
filing unless both of the following accompany the articles or

registration:

(a) A written appointment of an agent as described in
division (A) of this section that is signed by an authorized
representative of the limited liability company or foreign

limited liability company;

(b) A written acceptance of the appointment that is signed
by the designated agent on a form prescribed by the secretary of

state.

(2) In cases not covered by division (B) (1) of this
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section, the company shall appoint the agent described in
division (A) of this section and shall file with the secretary
of state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of state, a
written appointment of that agent that is signed by an
authorized representative of the company and a written
acceptance of the appointment that is signed by the designated

agent.

4+ (C) (1) The written appointment of an agent shall set

forth the name and address in this state of the agent, including

the street and number er—etherparticevlardeseriptienof the

agent's primary residence in this state or, if the agent is not

a natural person, the agent's usual place of business in this

state, and shall otherwise be in such form as the secretary of
state prescribes. The secretary of state shall keep a record of
the names of limited liability companies and foreign limited
liability companies, and the names and addresses of their

respective agents.

(2) As used in division (C) (1) of this section, "usual

place of business" means a place in this state that is

customarily open during normal business hours and where an

individual is generally present who is authorized to perform the

services of a registered agent, including accepting service of

process and other notifications for the person serving as a

statutory agent. "Usual place of business" does not include a

post office box, regardless of whether that post office box has

an _associated street address.

(D) If any agent described in division (A) of this section
dies, resigns, or moves outside of this state, the limited
liability company or foreign limited liability company shall

appoint forthwith another agent and file with the secretary of
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state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of state, a written
appointment of the agent and acceptance of appointment as

described in division (B) (2) of this section.

(E) If the agent described in division (A) of this section
changes the agent's address from the address stated in the
records of the secretary of state, the agent or the limited
liability company or foreign limited liability company shall
file forthwith with the secretary of state, on a form prescribed
by the secretary of state, a written statement setting forth the

new address.

(F) An agent described in division (A) of this section may
resign by filing with the secretary of state, on a form
prescribed by the secretary of state, a written notice of
resignation that is signed by the agent and by mailing a copy of
that notice to the limited liability company or foreign limited
liability company at the current or last known address of its
principal office. The notice shall be mailed to the company on
or prior to the date that the notice is filed with the secretary
of state and shall set forth the name of the company, the name
and current address of the agent, the current or last known
address, including the street and number or other particular
description, of the company's principal office, a statement of
the resignation of the agent, and a statement that a copy of the
notice has been sent to the company within the time and in the
manner specified in this division. The authority of the
resigning agent terminates thirty days after the filing of the

notice with the secretary of state.

(G) A limited liability company or foreign limited
liability company may revoke the appointment of its agent

described in division (A) of this section by filing with the
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secretary of state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of
state, a written appointment of another agent and an acceptance
of appointment in the manner described in division (B) (2) of
this section and a statement indicating that the appointment of

the former agent is revoked.

(H) (1) Any legal process, notice, or demand required or
permitted by law to be served upon a limited liability company

may be served upon the company as follows:

(a) By delivering a copy of the process, notice, or demand
to the address of the agent in this state as contained in the

records of the secretary of state;

(b) If the agent described in division (A) of this section
is a natural person, by delivering a copy of the process,

notice, or demand to the agent.

(2) If the agent described in division (A) of this section
cannot be found or no longer has the address that is stated in
the records of the secretary of state or the limited liability
company or foreign limited liability company has failed to
maintain an agent as required by this section and if the party
or the agent or representative of the party that desires service
of the process, notice, or demand files with the secretary of
state an affidavit that states that one of those circumstances
exists and states the most recent address of the company that
the party who desires service has been able to ascertain after a
diligent search, then the service of the process, notice, or
demand upon the secretary of state as the agent of the company
may be initiated by delivering to the secretary of state four
copies of the process, notice, or demand accompanied by a fee of
five dollars. The secretary of state shall give forthwith notice

of that delivery to the company at either its principal office
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as shown upon the secretary of state's records or at any
different address specified in the affidavit of the party
desiring service and shall forward to the company at either
address by certified mail, return receipt requested, a copy of
the process, notice, or demand. Service upon the company is made
when the secretary of state gives the notice and forwards the
process, notice, or demand as set forth in division (H) (2) of

this section.

(I) The secretary of state shall keep a record of each
process, notice, and demand that pertains to a limited liability
company or foreign limited liability company and that is
delivered to the secretary of state's office under this section
or another law of this state that authorizes service upon the
secretary of state in connection with a limited liability
company or foreign limited liability company. In that record,
the secretary of state shall record the time of each delivery of
that type and the secretary of state's subsequent action with

respect to the process, notice, or demand.

(J) This section does not limit or affect the right to
serve any process, notice, or demand upon a limited liability
company or foreign limited liability company in any other manner

permitted by law.

(K) A written appointment of an agent or a written
statement filed by a limited liability company or foreign
limited liability company with the secretary of state shall be

signed by an authorized representative of the company.

(L) Upon the failure of a limited liability company or
foreign limited liability company to continuously maintain a
statutory agent or file a change of name or address of a

statutory agent, the secretary of state shall give notice
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thereof by ordinary or electronic mail to the company at the
electronic mail address provided to the secretary of state, or
at the address set forth in the notice of resignation. Unless
the default is cured within thirty days after the mailing by the
secretary of state of the notice or within any further period of
time that the secretary of state grants, upon the expiration of
that period of time from the date of the mailing, the articles
of the limited liability company or the registration of the
foreign limited liability company shall be canceled without
further notice or action by the secretary of state. The
secretary of state shall make a notation of the cancellation on

the secretary of state's records.

A limited liability company or foreign limited liability
company whose articles or registration has been canceled may be

reinstated by filing,_within two years of the cancellation, on a

form prescribed by the secretary of state, an application for
reinstatement and the required appointment of agent or required
statement, and by paying the filing fee specified in division
(Q) of section 111.16 of the Revised Code. The rights and
privileges of a limited liability company or foreign limited
liability company whose articles or registration has been
reinstated are subject to section 1706.46 of the Revised Code.
The secretary of state shall furnish the tax commissioner a
monthly list of all limited liability companies and foreign
limited liability companies canceled and reinstated under this

division.

Sec. 1729.11. (A) An association whose articles of
incorporation have been canceled or an association that has been
dissolved in a manner other than for a voluntary dissolution as
provided in section 1729.55 of the Revised Code, or a judicial

dissolution as provided in section 1729.61 of the Revised Code,
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may be reinstated by filing,_within two vears of the

cancellation or dissolution, on a form prescribed by the

secretary of state for the administration of this chapter, an
application for reinstatement and the required appointment of a

statutory agent, and by paying a filing fee of ten dollars.

(B) Upon reinstatement of an association's articles of
incorporation, the rights, privileges, and franchises, including
all real or personal property rights and credits and all
contract and other rights, of the association existing at the
time that its articles were canceled or the dissolution became
effective shall continue in effect as if the articles had not
been canceled or the dissolution had not occurred; and the
association shall again be entitled to exercise the rights,

privileges, and franchises authorized by its articles.

Sec. 1746.04. (A) Except as set forth in section 1746.03
of the Revised Code, before transacting business in this state,
a business trust shall file in the office of the secretary of
state, on forms prescribed by the secretary of state, a report

containing the following information:
(1) A list of the names and addresses of its trustees;
(2) The address of its principal office;

(3) In the case of a foreign business trust, the address

of its principal office within this state, if any;

(4) The business names of the business trust, including

any fictitious or assumed names;

+5(5) (a) The name and primary residence or usual place of

business address within this state of a designated agent upon

whom process against the business trust may be served;
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(b) As used in division (A) (5) (a) of this section, "usual

place of business" means a place in this state that is

customarily open during normal business hours and where an

individual is generally present who is authorized to perform the

services of a registered agent, including accepting service of

process and other notifications for the person serving as a

statutory agent. "Usual place of business" does not include a

post office box, regardless of whether that post office box has

an associated street address.

(6) The irrevocable consent of the business trust to
service of process upon its designated agent and to service of
process upon the secretary of state if, without the registration
of another agent with the secretary of state, its designated
agent has died, resigned, lost authority, dissolved, become
disqualified, or has removed from this state, or if its

designated agent cannot, with due diligence, be found.

Such report shall have attached as an exhibit an executed
copy of the trust instrument or a true and correct copy of it,
certified to be such by a trustee before an official authorized
to administer oaths or by a public official in another state in

whose office an executed copy is on file.

(B) Not more than ninety days after the occurrence of any
event causing any filing, including exhibits, made pursuant to
division (A) of this section, or any previous filing made
pursuant to this division, to be inaccurate or incomplete, there
shall be filed in the office of the secretary of state all
information necessary to maintain the accuracy and completeness

of such filing.

(C) The secretary of state shall charge and collect the

fees specified in division (T) of section 111.16 of the Revised
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Code for each filing made under division (A) or (B) of this
section, except for filings under division (B) of this section
pertaining solely to division (A) (5) of this section, for which
the secretary of state shall charge and collect the fee

specified in division (R) of section 111.16 of the Revised Code.

(D) The trust instrument and other information filed in
the office of the secretary of state are matters of public
record, and persons dealing with a business trust are charged
with constructive notice of the contents of any such instrument

or information by reason of such filing.

(E) A copy of a trust instrument or other information
filed in the office of the secretary of state shall be accepted
as prima-facie evidence of the existence of the instrument or
other information and of its contents, and conclusive evidence

of the existence of such record.

(F) The agent designated pursuant to division (A) (5) of

this section shall be one of the following:
(1) A natural person who is a resident of this state;

(2) A domestic or foreign corporation, nonprofit
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited partnership
association, professional association, business trust, or
unincorporated nonprofit association that has a business address
in this state. If the agent is an entity other than a domestic
corporation, the agent shall meet the requirements of Title XVII
of the Revised Code for an entity of the agent's type to

transact business or exercise privileges in this state.

Sec. 1747.03. (A) Before transacting real estate business

in this state, a real estate investment trust shall file the
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following report in the office of the secretary of state, on

forms prescribed by the secretary of state:

(1) An executed copy of the trust instrument or a true and
correct copy of it, certified to be such by a trustee before an
official authorized to administer oaths or by a public official

in another state in whose office an executed copy is on file;
(2) A list of the names and addresses of its trustees;
(3) The address of its principal office;

(4) In the case of a foreign real estate investment trust,

the address of its principal office within this state, if any;
(5) The business name of the trust;

463 (6) (a) The name and primary residence or usual place of

business address within this state of a designated agent upon

whom process against the trust may be served;

(b) As used in division (A) (6) (a) of this section, "usual

place of business" means a place in this state that is

customarily open during normal business hours and where an

individual is generally present who is authorized to perform the

services of a registered agent, including accepting service of

process and other notifications for the person serving as a

statutory agent. "Usual place of business" does not include a

post office box, regardless of whether that post office box has

an_associated street address.

(7) The irrevocable consent of the trust to service of
process on its designated agent and to service of process upon
the secretary of state if, without the registration of another
agent with the secretary of state, its designated agent has

died, resigned, lost authority, dissolved, become disqualified,
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or has removed from this state, or if its designated agent

cannot, with due diligence, be found;

(8) Not more than ninety days after the occurrence of any
event causing any filing made pursuant to divisions (A) (2) to
(6) of this section, or any previous filing made pursuant to
this division, to be inaccurate or incomplete, all information
necessary to maintain the accuracy and completeness of such

filing.

(B) For filings under this section, the secretary of state
shall charge and collect the fee specified in division (T) of
section 111.16 of the Revised Code, except for filings under
division (A) (8) of this section pertaining solely to division
(A) (6) of this section, for which the secretary of state shall
charge and collect the fee specified in division (R) of section

111.16 of the Revised Code.

(C) All persons shall be given the opportunity to acquire
knowledge of the contents of the trust instrument and other
information filed in the office of the secretary of state, but
no person dealing with a real estate investment trust shall be
charged with constructive notice of the contents of any such

instrument or information by reason of such filing.

(D) A copy of a trust instrument or other information
filed in the office of the secretary of state is prima-facie
evidence of the existence of the instrument or other information
and of its contents, and is conclusive evidence of the existence

of such record.

(E) The agent designated pursuant to division (A) (6) of

this section shall be one of the following:

(1) A natural person who is a resident of this state;
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(2) A domestic or foreign corporation, nonprofit
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited partnership
association, professional association, business trust, or
unincorporated nonprofit association that has a business address
in this state. If the agent is an entity other than a domestic
corporation, the agent shall meet the requirements of Title XVII
of the Revised Code for an entity of the agent's type to

transact business or exercise privileges in this state.

Sec. 1776.07. (A) Any partnership that maintains an
effective statement of partnership authority under section
1776.33 of the Revised Code shall maintain continuously in this
state an agent for service of process on the partnership. The

agent shall be one of the following:
(1) A natural person who is a resident of this state;

(2) A domestic or foreign corporation, nonprofit
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited partnership
association, professional association, business trust, or
unincorporated nonprofit association that has a business address
in this state. If the agent is an entity other than a domestic
corporation, the agent shall meet the requirements of Title XVII
of the Revised Code for an entity of the agent's type to

transact business or exercise privileges in this state.

“B>+(B) (1) The secretary of state shall not accept an
original statement of partnership authority for filing unless
the statement of partnership authority includes a written
appointment of an agent as this section requires and a written

acceptance of the appointment signed by the designated agent.
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(2) The written appointment of an agent shall set forth

the name and address in this state of the agent, including the

street and number of the agent's primary residence in this state

or, if the agent is not a natural person, the agent's usual

place of business in this state, and shall otherwise be in such

form as the secretary of state prescribes. The secretary of

state shall keep a record of the names of partnerships, and the

names and addresses of their respective agents.

(3) As used in division (B) (2) of this section, "usual

place of business" means a place in this state that is

customarily open during normal business hours and where an

individual is generally present who is authorized to perform the

services of a registered agent, including accepting service of

process and other notifications for the person serving as a

statutory agent. "Usual place of business" does not include a

post office box, regardless of whether that post office box has

an_associated street address.

(C) If an agent dies, resigns, or moves outside of this
state, the partnership shall appoint forthwith another agent and
file with the secretary of state an amendment to its statement
of partnership authority appointing a new agent and including a
written acceptance of the appointment that is signed by the

designated agent.

(D) If the address of an agent changes from that stated in
the records of the secretary of state, the partnership forthwith
shall file with the secretary of state an amendment to its
statement of partnership authority setting forth the new

address.

(E) An agent may resign by filing a written and signed

notice of resignation with the secretary of state on a form the
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secretary prescribes and mailing a copy of that notice to the
partnership. The agent shall mail the copy of the notice to the
partnership at the current or last known address of its
principal office on or prior to the date that the agent files
the notice with the secretary of state. The notice shall include
the name of the partnership, the name and current address of the
agent, the current or last known address, including the street
and number or other particular description, of the partnership's
principal office, a statement of the resignation of the agent,
and a statement that a copy of the notice was provided to the
partnership within the time and in the manner specified in this
division. The resigning agent's authority terminates thirty days

after filing the notice with the secretary of state.

(F) A partnership may revoke the appointment of its agent
by filing with the secretary of state an amendment to its
statement of partnership authority indicating that the
appointment of the former agent is revoked and that a new agent
is appointed. A written acceptance signed by the new designated

agent shall accompany the filing.

(G) (1) Any legal process, notice, or demand required or
permitted by law to be served upon a partnership with an
effective statement of partnership authority may be served upon

the partnership as follows:

(a) If its agent is a natural person, by delivering a copy

of the process, notice, or demand to the agent;

(b) If its agent is not a natural person, by delivering a
copy of the process, notice, or demand to the address of the
agent in this state as contained in the records of the secretary

of state.
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(2) (a) If its agent cannot be found or no longer has the
address stated in the records of the secretary of state or the
partnership has failed to maintain an agent as this section
requires, and the party, agent, or representative that desires
service files with the secretary of state an affidavit stating
that one of those circumstances exists and the most recent
address of the partnership ascertained after a diligent search,
then service upon the secretary of state as the agent of the
partnership may be initiated by delivering to the secretary of
state four copies of the process, notice, or demand accompanied
by a fee of not less than five and not more than seven dollars,

as determined by the secretary of state.

(b) The secretary of state forthwith shall give notice of
that delivery to the partnership at either its principal office
as shown upon the secretary of state's records or at any
different address specified in the affidavit of the party
desiring service and shall forward to the partnership at either
address by certified mail, return receipt requested, a copy of

the process, notice, or demand.

(c) Service upon the partnership is made when the
secretary of state gives the notice and forwards the process,
notice, or demand as set forth in division (G) (2) of this

section.

(H) The secretary of state shall keep a record of each
process, notice, and demand that pertains to a partnership and
that is delivered to the secretary of state's office under this
section or another law of this state that authorizes service
upon the secretary of state in connection with a partnership. In
that record, the secretary shall record the time of each

delivery of that type and the secretary's subsequent action with
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respect to the process, notice, or demand.

(I) Nothing in this section limits or affects the right to
serve process in any other manner now or hereafter provided by
law. This section is an extension of, and not a limitation upon,

the right otherwise existing of service of legal process.

Sec. 1782.04. (A) Each limited partnership shall maintain
continuously in this state an agent for service of process on
the limited partnership. The agent shall be one of the

following:
(1) A natural person who is a resident of this state;

(2) A domestic or foreign corporation, nonprofit
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited
partnership, limited liability partnership, limited partnership
association, professional association, business trust, or
unincorporated nonprofit association that has a business address
in this state. If the agent is an entity other than a domestic
corporation, the agent shall meet the requirements of Title XVII
of the Revised Code for an entity of the agent's type to

transact business or exercise privileges in this state.

(B) The secretary of state shall not accept a certificate
of limited partnership for filing unless there is filed with the
certificate a written appointment of an agent that is signed by
the general partners of the limited partnership and a written
acceptance of the appointment that is signed by the agent, or
unless there is filed a written appointment of an agent that is
signed by any authorized officer of the limited partnership and
a written acceptance of the appointment that is either the
original acceptance signed by the agent or a photocopy,

facsimile, or similar reproduction of the original acceptance
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signed by the agent.

In the discretion of the secretary of state, an original
appointment of statutory agent may be submitted on the same form
as the certificate of limited partnership but shall not be

considered a part of the certificate.

4> (C) (1) The written appointment of an agent shall set

forth the name and address in this state of the agent, including

the street and number er—etherparticvlardeseriptienof the

agent's primary residence in this state or, if the agent is not

a natural person, the agent's usual place of business in this

state, and shall otherwise be in the form the secretary of state
prescribes. The secretary of state shall keep a record of the
names of limited partnerships, and the names and addresses of

their respective agents.

(2) As used in division (C) (1) of this section, "usual

place of business" means a place in this state that is

customarily open during normal business hours and where an

individual is generally present who is authorized to perform the

services of a registered agent, including accepting service of

process and other notifications for the person serving as a

statutory agent. "Usual place of business" does not include a

post office box, regardless of whether that post office box has

an associated street address.

(D) If any agent dies, removes from the state, or resigns,
the limited partnership shall forthwith appoint another agent
and file with the secretary of state, on a form prescribed by

the secretary of state, a written appointment of the new agent.

(E) If the agent changes the agent's address from that

appearing upon the record in the office of the secretary of
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state, the limited partnership or the agent forthwith shall file
with the secretary of state, on a form prescribed by the
secretary of state, a written statement setting forth the new

address.

(F) An agent may resign by filing with the secretary of
state, on a form prescribed by the secretary of state, a written
notice to that effect that is signed by the agent and by sending
a copy of the notice to the limited partnership at its current
or last known address or its principal office on or prior to the
date the notice is filed with the secretary of state. The notice
shall set forth the name of the limited partnership, the name
and current address of the agent, the current or last known
address, including the street and number or other particular
description, of the limited partnership's principal office, the
resignation of the agent, and a statement that a copy of the
notice has been sent to the limited partnership within the time
and in the manner prescribed by this division. Upon the
expiration of thirty days after the filing, the authority of the

agent shall terminate.

(G) A limited partnership may revoke the appointment of an
agent by filing with the secretary of state, on a form
prescribed by the secretary of state, a written appointment of
another agent and a statement that the appointment of the former

agent 1is revoked.

(H) Except when an original appointment of an agent is
filed with the certificate of limited partnership, a written
appointment of an agent or a written statement filed by a
limited partnership with the secretary of state shall be signed
by any authorized officer of the limited partnership, or the

general partners of the limited partnership, or a majority of
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them.

Sec. 1785.06. A professional association, within thirty
days after the thirtieth day of June in each even-numbered year,
shall furnish a statement to the secretary of state showing the
names and post-office addresses of all of the shareholders in
the association and certifying that all of the shareholders are
duly licensed, certificated, or otherwise legally authorized to
render within this state the same professional service for which
the association was organized or, in the case of a combination
of professional services described in division (B) of section
1785.01 of the Revised Code, to render within this state any of
the applicable types of professional services for which the
association was organized. This statement shall be made on a
form that the secretary of state shall prescribe, shall be
signed by an officer of the association, and shall be filed in

the office of the secretary of state.

If any professional association fails to file the biennial
statement within the time required by this section, the
secretary of state shall give notice of the failure by ordinary
or electronic mail to the last known physical or electronic
address of the association or its agent. If the biennial
statement is not filed within thirty days after the mailing of
the notice, the secretary of state, upon the expiration of that
period, shall cancel the association's articles of
incorporation, give notice of the cancellation to the
association by ordinary or electronic mail sent to the last
known physical or electronic address of the association or its
agent, and make a notation of the cancellation on the records of

the secretary of state.

A professional association whose articles have been
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canceled pursuant to this section may be reinstated by filing,

within two years of the cancellation, an application for

reinstatement and the required biennial statement or statements
and by paying the reinstatement fee specified in division (Q) of
section 111.16 of the Revised Code. The rights, privileges, and
franchises of a professional association whose articles have
been reinstated are subject to section 1701.922 of the Revised
Code. The secretary of state shall inform the tax commissioner

of all cancellations and reinstatements under this section.

Section 2. That existing sections 1345.02, 1701.07,
1702.06, 1702.59, 1703.041, 1703.15, 1703.29, 1706.09, 1729.11,
1746.04, 1747.03, 1776.07, 1782.04, and 1785.06 of the Revised

Code are hereby repealed.
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